
      

NO T ICE O F  MEET INGNO T ICE O F  MEET ING
CIT Y O F  G ARLAND, T EXASCIT Y O F  G ARLAND, T EXAS

PLAN CO MMISSIO NPLAN CO MMISSIO N
City  Hall,  Counc il ChambersCity  Hall,  Counc il Chambers

William E. Dollar  Munic ipal Build ingWilliam E. Dollar  Munic ipal Build ing
200 N. F if th Street200 N. F if th Street

G ar land, T ex asG ar land, T ex as
May  13, 2024 at 7:00 p.m.May  13, 2024 at 7:00 p.m.  

 
A meet ing of the Plan Commis s ion of the C ity  of  G ar land, T ex as  w ill be held at the aforementioned loc at ion, date, and t ime to dis c us s  and c ons ider  theA meeting of the Plan Commis s ion of the C ity  of  G ar land, T ex as  w ill be held at the aforementioned loc at ion, date, and t ime to dis c us s  and c ons ider  the
follow ing agenda items .follow ing agenda items .

A pre-meet ing w ill begin at 6:45 p.m. at  the s ame loc at ion as  the regular  meet ing.  T he agenda for  the pre-meet ing is  the s ame as  for  the regularA pre-meet ing w ill begin at 6:45 p.m. at  the s ame loc at ion as  the regular  meet ing.  T he agenda for  the pre-meet ing is  the s ame as  for  the regular
meet ing, and may  inc lude addit ional items  as  s et for th below.meeting, and may  inc lude addit ional items  as  s et for th below.

  INVO CAT IO N AND PLEDG E O F  ALLEG IANCE:  I t  is  the c us tom and tr adit ion of the members  of the Plan Commis s ion to hav e an inv oc at ion and rec ita lINVO CAT IO N AND PLEDG E O F  ALLEG IANCE:  I t  is  the c us tom and tr adit ion of the members  of the Plan Commis s ion to hav e an inv oc at ion and rec ita l
of  the Pledge of Allegianc e pr ior  to the beginning of the meet ing.  Members  of the audienc e are inv ited to par t ic ipate.  Howev er ,  members  of theof the Pledge of Allegianc e pr ior  to the beginning of the meet ing.  Members  of the audienc e are inv ited to par t ic ipate.  Howev er ,  members  of the
audienc e are not r equir ed to par t ic ipate.  T he dec is ion to par t ic ipate is  s tr ic t ly  a matter  of  pers onal c hoic e and has  no bear ing on matter s  to beaudienc e are not r equir ed to par t ic ipate.  T he dec is ion to par t ic ipate is  s tr ic t ly  a matter  of  pers onal c hoic e and has  no bear ing on matter s  to be
c ons idered by  the Plan Commis s ion and w ill not af fec t the dec is ions  to be made dur ing the meet ing.c ons idered by  the Plan Commis s ion and w ill not af fec t the dec is ions  to be made dur ing the meet ing.

T he meet ing w ill be broadc as t on C ity  of  G ar land G ov ernment Ac c es s  T elev is ion (CG T V) .  CG T V is  av ailable v ia G ar landT X.gov , c hannel 16T he meet ing w ill be broadc as t on C ity  of  G ar land G ov ernment Ac c es s  T elev is ion (CG T V) .  CG T V is  av ailable v ia G ar landT X.gov , c hannel 16
(Spec trum) , Channel 44 (F ront ier ) ,  and c hannel 99 (AT &T  U-v ers e) .   Meet ings  are broadc as t online v ia liv e- s tr eaming, on-demand, and air  on CG T V(Spec trum) , Channel 44 (F ront ier ) ,  and c hannel 99 (AT &T  U-v ers e) .   Meet ings  are broadc as t online v ia liv e- s tr eaming, on-demand, and air  on CG T V
with s ev eral r ebroadc as ts  dur ing the week  of the meet ing. w ith s ev eral r ebroadc as ts  dur ing the week  of the meet ing. 

Public  CommentsPublic  Comments
Your  c omments  mus t r e late to an item on th is  agenda -  non-germane c omments  are not in order .   T ime limits  w ill be impos ed by  the Chairman asYour  c omments  mus t r e late to an item on th is  agenda -  non-germane c omments  are not in order .   T ime limits  w ill be impos ed by  the Chairman as
appropr iate to the nature of the agenda item.  G enerally ,  public  s peak ers  are giv en three minutes .appropr iate to the nature of the agenda item.  G enerally ,  public  s peak ers  are giv en three minutes .  

IN-PERSO N CO MMENT S: Regis tr at ion w ill be r equir ed for  any  c it iz en w is hing to s peak . Speak ers  s hall r egis ter  us ing the elec tr onic  r egis tr at ion k ios k sIN-PERSO N CO MMENT S: Regis tr at ion w ill be r equir ed for  any  c it iz en w is hing to s peak . Speak ers  s hall r egis ter  us ing the elec tr onic  r egis tr at ion k ios k s
in the lobby  of C ity  Hall.in the lobby  of C ity  Hall.

G ar land C ity  Hall and Counc il Chambers  are wheelc hair  ac c es s ible.   Spec ial park ing is  av ailable on the eas t s ide of C ity  Hall and on Aus t in & StateG ar land C ity  Hall and Counc il Chambers  are wheelc hair  ac c es s ible.   Spec ial park ing is  av ailable on the eas t s ide of C ity  Hall and on Aus t in & State
Street wes t of  C ity  Hall.   Pers ons  w ith dis abilit ies  who plan to at tend th is  meet ing and who may  need aux iliar y  aids  or  s er v ic es  mus t c ontac t the C ityStreet wes t of  C ity  Hall.   Pers ons  w ith dis abilit ies  who plan to at tend th is  meet ing and who may  need aux iliar y  aids  or  s er v ic es  mus t c ontac t the C ity
Sec retar y 's  O ff ic e at ( 972)  205-2404 at leas t two work ing day s  pr ior  to the meet ing s o that appropr iate ar rangements  c an be made.  BRAILLE IS NO TSec retar y 's  O ff ic e at ( 972)  205-2404 at leas t two work ing day s  pr ior  to the meet ing s o that appropr iate ar rangements  c an be made.  BRAILLE IS NO T
AVAILABLE.AVAILABLE.

I f  the Plan Commis s ion adjourns  into ex ec ut iv e s es s ion dur ing th is  meet ing, the ex ec ut iv e s es s ion w ill be c onduc ted between and among the membersIf  the Plan Commis s ion adjourns  into ex ec ut iv e s es s ion dur ing th is  meet ing, the ex ec ut iv e s es s ion w ill be c onduc ted between and among the members
of the Plan Commis s ion and relev ant C ity  s taf f .   Public  ac c es s  to that meet ing is  prohibited by  State law.  of  the Plan Commis s ion and relev ant C ity  s taf f .   Public  ac c es s  to that meet ing is  prohibited by  State law.  
 

C ON SEN T AGEN D AC ON SEN T AGEN D A  
 

Al l  i tems under th is section are recommended for approval  by a single motion of the P lan C ommission,A l l  i tems under th is section are recommended for approval  by a single motion of the P lan C ommission,
w i thout d iscussion.  The P lan C ommission has had the opportuni ty to review  each of these i tems during aw i thout d iscussion.  The P lan C ommission has had the opportuni ty to review  each of these i tems during a
pre-meeting.  The C hai rman w i l l  announce the agenda and provide an opportuni ty for members of thepre-meeting.  The C hai rman w i l l  announce the agenda and provide an opportuni ty for members of the
audience and the P lan C ommission to request that an i tem be removed and considered separate ly.audience and the P lan C ommission to request that an i tem be removed and considered separate ly.  
 
      

1.1. MINUTESMINUTES   

 

a.a. Consider approval of the Plan Commission Minutes for the April 22, 2024 meeting.
 

2.2. PLATSPLATS   

 

a.a. P 24-11 Urbana Centerville Addition -- Final Plat
 

b.b. P 24-12 Urban Village at Rosehill -- Final Plat
 

c.c. P 24-14 Faulkner Point No.7 First Replat -- Final Plat
 



      

ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATIONITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION 
 

Speaker Regulations:Speaker Regulations:

Anyone wishing to speak for, against, or on agenda items must fi l l out a speaker card and giveAnyone wishing to speak for, against, or on agenda items must fi l l out a speaker card and give
it to the Plan Commission Secretary before speaking (cards are located at the entrance to theit to the Plan Commission Secretary before speaking (cards are located at the entrance to the
Council Chambers).  The Chairman will recognize speakers; he may impose a time limit andCouncil Chambers).  The Chairman will recognize speakers; he may impose a time limit and
may provide for rebuttal.  All comments and testimony are to be presented from the podium.may provide for rebuttal.  All comments and testimony are to be presented from the podium.

  

 

3.3. ZONINGZONING   

 

a.a. Consideration of the application of U-Haul Company of East DallasU-Haul Company of East Dallas , requesting approval of 1) a Change
in Zoning from Industrial (IN) District to a Planned Development (PD) District; 2) a Specific Use Provision
for a Truck/Bus Sales & Leasing/Rental Use and 3) a Detail Plan for a Truck/Bus Sales & Leasing/Rental
Use. This property is located at 2502, 2504 and 2550 McCree Road. (District 5) (File Z 23-50)

 

4.4. ADJOURNADJOURN   

 

NOTICE: The Plan Commission may recess from the open session and convene in a closed session if the discussion of any of the listed agenda items concerns matters regarding
priviledged and unpriviiledged client information deemed confidential by Rule 1.05 of the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct.  Sec. 551.071, Tex. Gov't Code.

NOTE: A quorum of the City Council may be in attendance and may or may not participate in the discussions of the Committee or board.



GARLANDGARLAND   
  

  
Plan CommissionPlan Commission 1. a. 1. a.             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/13/2024  
Item Tit le:Item Tit le: Plan Commission Minutes for April 22, 2024
Summary:Summary:
Consider approval of the Plan Commission Minutes for the April 22, 2024 meeting.

AttachmentsAttachments
April 22, 2024 Plan Commission Minutes



MINUTESMINUTES
 

 
The Plan Commission of the City of Garland convened in regular session at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, April 22, 2024, in
the Council Chambers at the William E. Dollar Municipal Building, 200 N. Fifth Street, Garland, Texas, with the
following members present:

Present: Scott Roberts, Chairman  
Wayne Dalton, 2nd Vice Chair  
Stephanie Paris, Commissioner  
Georgie Cornelius, Commissioner  
Patrick Abell, Commissioner  
Michael Rose, Commissioner  

Absent: Julius Jenkins, 1st Vice Chair
 Rich Aubin, Commissioner

Staff Present: Will Guerin, Planning Director
Angela Self, Planning Administrator
Matthew Wolverton, Development Planner
Shawn Roten, Senior Assistant City Attorney
Trey Lansford, Deputy City Attorney
Elisa Morales, Secretary

 
C O NSENT  AG EN DAC O NSEN T  AG END A  

 
All items  under  th is  s ec t ion ar e  r ec ommended for  appr ov a l by  a  s ing le  mot ion o f  the Plan C ommis s ion,  w ithout  d is c us s ion.   T he Plan C ommis s ion hasAll items  under  th is  s ec t ion ar e  r ec ommended for  appr ov a l by  a  s ing le  mot ion o f  the Plan C ommis s ion,  w ithout  d is c us s ion.   T he Plan C ommis s ion has
had the oppor tun ity  to  r ev iew  eac h o f  thes e items  dur ing a  pr e- meet ing.   T he C hair man w ill announc e the agenda and pr ov ide an oppor tun ity  forhad the oppor tun ity  to  r ev iew  eac h o f  thes e items  dur ing a  pr e- meet ing.   T he Chair man w ill announc e the agenda and pr ov ide an oppor tun ity  for
member s  o f  the aud ienc e and the Plan Commis s ion to  r eques t  that  an item be r emov ed and c ons ider ed s epar ate ly .member s  o f  the aud ienc e and the Plan Commis s ion to  r eques t  that  an item be r emov ed and c ons ider ed s epar ate ly .

Mot ionMot ion  was made by Commissioner Paris to appr ov eappr ov e  the Consent Agenda. Seconded by Commissioner Abell. Mot ion c ar r iedMot ion c ar r ied : 55  Ayes, 11  Abstain by Commissioner Dalton.  
 
        

1.1. MINUTESMINUTES  
 

a.a. Consider approval of the Plan Commission Minutes for the April 8, 2024 meeting. APPROVEDAPPROVED   

 

2.2. PLATSPLATS  
 

a.a. P 24-10 Tuckerville Park-Final Plat APPROVEDAPPROVED   

 

ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATIONITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION 
 

Speaker Regulations:Speaker Regulations:

Anyone wishing to speak for, against, or on agenda items must f i l l  out a speakerAnyone wishing to speak for, against, or on agenda items must f i l l  out a speaker
card and give it to the Plan Commission Secretary before speaking (cards arecard and give it to the Plan Commission Secretary before speaking (cards are
located at the entrance to the Council Chambers).  The Chairman will recognizelocated at the entrance to the Council Chambers).  The Chairman will recognize
speakers; he may impose a t ime limit and may provide for rebuttal.  All commentsspeakers; he may impose a t ime limit and may provide for rebuttal.  All comments
and testimony are to be presented from the podium.and testimony are to be presented from the podium.

 

 

3.3. ZONINGZONING  
 

a.a. Consideration of the application of Triangle Engineering, LLCTriangle Engineering, LLC, requesting approval of 1) an
Amendment to Planned Development (PD) District 12-56 for Community Retail (CR) Uses; 2) a
Specific Use Provision for a Restaurant, Drive-Through Use and 3) a Detail Plan for Retail Use,
Restaurant Use and Restaurant with Drive-Through Use. This property is located at 5203
Naaman Forest Boulevard. (District 1) (File Z 23-08)

DENIEDDENIED   



The applicant, Andrew Yeoh, 6614 Clear Spring Circle, Dallas, TX, provided an overview of the
request and remained available for questions.

Chair Roberts expressed concerns to the applicant about the closeness of the building and the
lack of a 30-foot landscape.

Commissioner Dalton asked the applicant for more specifics on the type of restaurant in order
to get a better idea of what the wait times at the drive-through would be like.

The applicant explained that at the beginning the establishment would be a coffee shop. 

Commissioner Dalton asked the applicant what the remainder of the establishment would be as
far as restaurant or retail. 

The applicant explained that the remaining establishment would be a restaurant with a dine in
option. The applicant also added that they are currently working on their marketing campaign to
attract prospective business.

Commissioner Dalton stated that if the establishment was a restaurant, the parking space would
not be sufficient for the establishment. Commissioner Dalton added that the drive-through set up
concerns him in that patrons would have to do a u-turn to be able to access the drive-through. 

Commissioner Paris asked the applicant if a Traffic Impact Analysis was conducted for the
subject property.

The applicant confirmed that a Traffic Impact Analysis was conducted and they have addressed
any concerns.

Chair Roberts asked staff to confirm if the Transportation Department was specifically looking
at the ingress and egress off of Naaman School Road but do not look as much to the interior of
the property and specifically at the flow of the cars in the drive-through. 

Staff stated that the Transportation Department will also look at the internal circulation of the
private property side as well for example in regards to a drive-through, they will look at a
minimum vehicle space. Staff confirmed that the Transportation Department did conduct a
Traffic Impact Analysis and worked with the applicant to get all of the requirements met. 

MotionMotion was made by Commissioner Dalton to close the public hearing and denydeny  the application
as presented. Motion did not move forward for lack of a second.

MotionMotion was made by Commissioner Rose to close the public hearing and approveapprove the
application as presented. Seconded by Commissioner Cornelius. Motion failedMotion failed: 33 Ayes, 33
Nays with Commissioners Dalton, Roberts and Abell voting in opposition. 

 

b.b. Consideration of the application of Mechu Autos Limited CompanyMechu Autos Limited Company , requesting approval of
 1) a Specific Use Provision for an Automobile Sales, New or Used Use on a property zoned
Industrial (IN) District and 2) a Plan for an Automobile Sales, New or Used Use. This property is
located at 702 Easy Street. (District 6) (File Z 24-07) 

The applicant, Emeka Okoye, 702 Easy Street, Garland, TX, remained available for questions.

Commissioner Rose asked the applicant how they would control the amount of cars on the
property since the request is for inside only. 

The applicant explained that a maximum of six cars would be inside and no cars would be on
the outside. The outside parking would only be for customers. The applicant further explained
that on the front there is five customer spaces available and four additional spaces in the back. 

MotionMotion was made by Commissioner Dalton to close the public hearing and denydeny  the application
as presented. Seconded by Commissioner Rose. Motion carr iedMotion carr ied: 66 Ayes, 00 Nays. 

DENIEDDENIED   

 



        

4.4. MISCELLANEOUSMISCELLANEOUS  
 

a.a. Consideration of the application of Shana CarterShana Carter , requesting approval of 1) a Major Waiver to
Chapter 7, Table 7-7 of the Garland Development Code and 2) a Downtown Development Plan
to allow an attached wall sign on a property zoned Downtown (DT) District, Downtown Historic
(DH) sub-district. This property is located at 409 Main Street. (District 2) (File DD 24-02) 

The applicant, Shana Carter, 409 Main Street, Garland, TX 75040, remained available for
questions. 

Commissioner Rose asked the applicant if the sign would be lighted.

The applicant confirmed the sign would be lighted. 

Chair Roberts asked the applicant if the sign would be lighted internally or externally.

The applicant clarified that the sign would be front lit and back lit. 

MotionMotion was made by Commissioner Abell to close the public hearing and approveapprove the
application as presented. Seconded by Commissioner Paris. Motion carr iedMotion carr ied: 66 Ayes, 00
Nays.  

APPROVEDAPPROVED   

 

5.5. ADJOURNADJOURN

There being no further business to come before the Plan Commission, the meeting adjourned at
7:22 p.m. 

 

 
CITY OF GARLAND, TEXAS  

 
/s/ Scott Roberts, Chairman  /s/ Elisa Morales, Secretary



GARLANDGARLAND   
  

  
Plan CommissionPlan Commission 2. a. 2. a.             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/13/2024  
Item Tit le:Item Tit le: P 24-11 Urbana Centerville Addition - Final Plat
Summary:Summary:
P 24-11 Urbana Centerville Addition -- Final Plat

AttachmentsAttachments
P 24-11 Urbana Centerville Addition Final Plat Report & Attachments



Planning Report 
File No: P 24-11 /District 2 
Agenda Item: 
Meeting: Plan Commission 
Date: May 13, 2024 
 
FINAL PLAT 
Urbana Centerville Addition 
 
LOCATION 
2201 East Miller Road and 2370 East Centerville Road 
 
ZONING 
Planned Development (PD) District 21-45 for Multi-Family-1 (MF-1) Use. 
 
NUMBER OF LOTS 
Two 

 
ACREAGE 
38.374 acres 
 
BACKGROUND 
The purpose of this Final Plat to create two (2) lots of record for the multi-family 
development. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approval of the Final Plat. All technical requirements have been addressed and the plat is in 
order as submitted.  
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
i. Location Map 
ii. 24 x 36 Plat  
 
PREPARED BY: REVIEWED BY: 
Matthew Wolverton                                             Will Guerin, AICP 
Lead Development Planner                                  Director of Planning                              
Planning and Development                                    
972-205-2454  
mwolverton@garlandtx.gov 
  
 
 
 



LYRICCIR

MODANO DR

G
AT

EW
AY

 D
R

R
U

STIC
LN

LUKA
LN

M
ES

A 
C

T

IN
C

LIN
E

C
IR

NOVEL D
R

LEGEND DR

E 
C

EN
TE

R
VI

LL
E 

R
D

LYRIC
DR

E MILLER RDP D  9 1 - 4P D  9 1 - 4

P D  9 1 - 3 3P D  9 1 - 3 3 P D  1 4 - 1 1P D  1 4 - 1 1

S  2 2 - 1 0S  2 2 - 1 0

S F - 1 0S F - 1 0

C RC R

S F - 7S F - 7

C RC R

P D  1 5 - 1 9P D  1 5 - 1 9

A GA G
A GA G

A GA G

A GA G

A GA G

S  0 9 - 1 8S  0 9 - 1 8

P D  0 6 - 4 6P D  0 6 - 4 6

1938

2009

1950

1942

1134

1918

2001

1825

1930

1949

1942
1934

1806

1954 1966

1802

1953

1926

1953

1830

1950

1901

1829

1805

1138

1149

1701

1935

1962

1930

1801

1102

13091709

1918

1714

1962

1714

1218

1826

1126

1113

1933

1321

1910

1918

1814

1129

1806

1958

1125

1917

1817

1945

1965

1922

19291909

1221

1918

1705

1702

1807

2001

1918

1109

1938

1942

1905

1717

1709

1122

19131829

1326

1926

1713

1814

1210

1945

1906

1802

1130

1803

1925

1715

1826

1922

1817

1954

1902

1150

1914

1822

1957

1922

1950

1710

1946

1613

1801

1209

1826

1606

1941

1901

1902

1214

1302

1921

1133

1217

1813

1918

1917

1134

1801

1617

1953 2009

1969

1805

1938

1906

1818

1969

1970

1902

1202

1822

1810

1834

1820

1917

2114

1710

2014

1945

1954

1966

2005

1825

1938

1913

1818

1905 1709

1209

1814

1906

1973

1830

1930

1901

1974

1802

1802

2013

1925

1153

1714 1706

1810

1117

1939

1929

1314

1974

1934

1701

1809

1120

1905

1141

1822

1926

1825

1961

1937
1945

1921

1142

1810

1702

1154

1225
1949

2005

1826

1815

1105
1901

1301

1910

1818

1805

1926

1605

1821

1821

1946

1205

1922

1957

1710

1954

1934

1829

1905

1814

1949

1910

1814

1917

1958

1833

2010

1809

1706

1213

1112

1929

2017

1213

1950

1818

1609

1818

1941

1815

1822

1157

1802

2013

1806

1713

1322

1921

1909

1810

1965

1922

1810

1317

2106

1808

1137

1914
1905

1961

1930

1941

1310

1313

1937

1128

1910

1902

1809

1953

1101

1942

1802

2002

1913

1809

1803

1705

1925 1934

1918

1914

2102

1821

1330

1806

1114

1906

1949

1958

1713

1305

1914

1814

1909

1934

1817

2006

1818

1910
1610

1813

1942

1210

1901

1822

1702

1222

1714

1830

1306

1913

1718

1706

1710

1817

1202

1906

1821

1825

1325

1706

1946

1801

1121

1318

18101614

1805

1145

1909

2332

1945
1941

1931

2110

1944

1900

1800

2137

2214

2000

2550

2370

2350

2201

2331

2021

2000

1976

3601

1970

1974 1978
1986
1990

1994
1998

2404
2414

2428
2434

2448
24682474

24542488

1318
1314

1310
1306

1302

1317

1313
1309

1305
1301

1322
1318

1314
1310

13061302
13011305

1309
1313

1317

2050

2109

2105
21132117

2121

2125
2129
2133

2137
2141

2104
2108

2116 2120
2124

2128

17051709

1713
1717

1721
1725

1729
2105

2104 2112

2105
2109 2113

2117
2125 2129

2133

2137 21412104
2108

2112
2116 2120

2124 2128
21322105

2109
21132125

2129 21332112
2116 2120 2132

2136 21402144 17131717

1721

1705
1709

1704
1708

1705
1709

1704
1708

1712

2105
2109 2117

2129

2133
21412145 2149

2153
2157

2161

1712
1716 1724

2104 2108
2112

2116

2120

2128
2132

2136
2140

2144
2148
2152

2156
2160
2164

2168
2175

2179

2183
2187

2191
2195

1704
1708

1712
1720

1724
1728

1732
1740

1744

1748
1752

1756
1760

1764
1768

1772
1780

21132117
2121 2129

2133
2153

2165
2169

2171
2104

2108
2112

2120
2124

2128
2132

2136
2140

2144

2105
2113

2104
2108

2105 2109
2104

21082105
2109

2117
2125

2121 2129 2141
2145 2153

2165 2181

2185
2193

2209
2213

¯
0 270 540 Feet

1 inch = 408 feet PLAT MAP P 24-11 INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST













GARLANDGARLAND   
  

  
Plan CommissionPlan Commission 2. b. 2. b.             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/13/2024  
Item Tit le:Item Tit le: P 24-12 Urban Village at Rosehill - Final Plat
Summary:Summary:
P 24-12 Urban Village at Rosehill -- Final Plat

AttachmentsAttachments
P 24-12 Urban Village at Rosehill Final Plat Report & Attachments



Planning Report 
File No: P 24-12 /District 3 
Agenda Item: 
Meeting: Plan Commission 
Date: May 13, 2024 
 
FINAL PLAT 
Urban Village at Rosehill 
 
LOCATION 
240 & 250 East Interstate 30 Freeway, 328 Oaks Trail 
 
ZONING 
Planned Development (PD) District 21-52 for Mixed Uses. 
 
NUMBER OF LOTS 
Two (2) total lots including one (1) common area lot. 

 
ACREAGE 
6.788 acres 
 
BACKGROUND 
The purpose of this Final Plat to create two (2) lots of record for a multi-family development 
within this planned mixed-use development. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approval of the Final Plat. All technical requirements have been addressed and the plat is in 
order as submitted.  
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
i. Location Map 
ii. 24 x 36 Plat  
 
PREPARED BY: REVIEWED BY: 
Matthew Wolverton                                             Will Guerin, AICP 
Lead Development Planner                                  Director of Planning                              
Planning and Development                                    
972-205-2454  
mwolverton@garlandtx.gov 
  
 
 
 



W
ISE LN

E I30 FRWYE I30 FRWY

E I30 SERVICE RD S

E I30 ROSEHILL ON S

E I30 ON N

E I30

ROSEHILL

OFF N

PR
O

SP
ER

IT
Y 

D
R

ENGLISH OAK DR

E I30 ROAN OFF S

E I30 SERVICE RD N

OAKS TRL

SS
9 3 - 3 99 3 - 3 9

SS
9 9 - 1 19 9 - 1 1

S F - 7S F - 7S F - 7S F - 7

M F - 1M F - 1

M F - 1M F - 1

A GA G

C OC O

P D  1 8 - 2 0P D  1 8 - 2 0

S F - ES F - E

P D  2 1 - 5 2P D  2 1 - 5 2

P D / SP D / S
2 2 - 7 82 2 - 7 8

S  1 5 - 0 3S  1 5 - 0 3

¯
0 160 320 Feet

1 inch = 245 feet PLAT MAP P 24-12 INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST







GARLANDGARLAND   
  

  
Plan CommissionPlan Commission 2. c. 2. c .             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/13/2024  
Item Tit le:Item Tit le: P 24-14 Faulkner Point No. 7 First Replat - Final Plat
Summary:Summary:
P 24-14 Faulkner Point No.7 First Replat -- Final Plat

AttachmentsAttachments
P 24-14 Faulkner Point No. 7 First Replat Final Plat Report & Attachments



Planning Report 
File No: P 24-14 /District 3 
Agenda Item: 
Meeting: Plan Commission 
Date: May 13, 2024 
 
FINAL PLAT 
Faulkner Point NO.7 First Replat 
 
LOCATION 
5751 Marvin Loving Drive 
 
ZONING 
Planned Development (PD) District 19-31 
 
NUMBER OF LOTS 
One (1) total lot 

 
ACREAGE 
1.948 acres 
 
BACKGROUND 
The purpose of this Final Plat to create one (1) lot of record for a multi-family development. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approval of the Final Plat. All technical requirements have been addressed and the plat is in 
order as submitted.  
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
i. Location Map 
ii. 24 x 36 Plat  
 
PREPARED BY: REVIEWED BY: 
Matthew Wolverton                                             Will Guerin, AICP 
Lead Development Planner                                  Director of Planning                              
Planning and Development                                    
972-205-2454  
mwolverton@garlandtx.gov 
  
 
 
 



E I3
0 S

ERVIC
E R

D SE I3
0 F

RW
Y

GEORGE BUSH I3
0 O

FF

LAKE HUBBARD PKWY

M
AR

VI
N 

LO
VI

NG
 D

R

P D  0 5 - 2 7P D  0 5 - 2 7

M F - 1M F - 1

P D  7 7 - 6P D  7 7 - 6

M F - 1M F - 1

C RC RC RC R

C RC R

A GA G

A GA G

M F - 1M F - 1

P D  1 9 - 3 1P D  1 9 - 3 1

¯
0 100 200 Feet

1 inch = 159 feet PLAT MAP P 24-14 INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST







GARLANDGARLAND   
  

  
Plan CommissionPlan Commission 3. a. 3. a.             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/13/2024  
Item Tit le:Item Tit le: Z 23-50 U-Haul Company of East Dallas (District 5)
Summary:Summary:
Consideration of the application of U-Haul Company of East DallasU-Haul Company of East Dallas , requesting approval of 1) a Change in Zoning
from Industrial (IN) District to a Planned Development (PD) District; 2) a Specific Use Provision for a Truck/Bus
Sales & Leasing/Rental Use and 3) a Detail Plan for a Truck/Bus Sales & Leasing/Rental Use. This property is
located at 2502, 2504 and 2550 McCree Road. (District 5) (File Z 23-50)

AttachmentsAttachments
Z 23-50 U-Haul Company of East Dallas Report & Attachments
Z 23-50 U-Haul Company of East Dallas Responses



 

Planning Report 
File No: Z 23-50/District 5 
Agenda Item: 
Meeting: Plan Commission 
Date: May 13, 2024 
 
REQUEST 
Approval of 1) a Change in Zoning from Industrial (IN) District to a Planned Development 
(PD) District; 2) a Specific Use Provision for a Truck/Bus Sales & Leasing/Rental Use and 3) 
a Detail Plan for Truck/Bus Sales & Leasing/Rental Use. 
 
LOCATION 
2502, 2504, & 2550 McCree Road 
 
APPLICANT 
U-Haul Company of East Dallas 
 
OWNER 
Amerco Real Estate Company 
 
BACKGROUND 
The site currently contains an existing building that was previously used for U-Haul truck 
repair for the last 55 years. In an effort to modernize the overall site, the repair shop has 
been relocated and the applicant wishes to use the building as a U-Haul truck and trailer 
share [Truck/Bus Sales & Leasing/Rental Use] instead. 
 
SITE DATA 
The subject property contains 3.29 acres and is accessed from two points along McCree 
Road. On the site lies an existing 5,253 square foot building, truck parking spaces, truck 
display parking, equipment shunting areas, and customer parking spaces. 
 
USE OF PROPERTY UNDER CURRENT ZONING 
The subject property is zoned Industrial (IN) District.  
 
The Industrial (IN) district is intended to provide for a wide range of industrial uses that are 
generally not compatible adjacent to residential neighborhoods, and may or may not be 
compatible with some nonresidential uses. Such uses include manufacturing, processing, 
assembling, research and development, and warehousing and distribution. The Industrial 
district also accommodates support services for industrial development such as office, 
commercial, personal and professional services, and limited retail activities. The Industrial 
district regulations are designed to ensure compatibility among the various uses allowed in 
the district, and to protect adjacent non-industrial development from potentially 
incompatible uses and conditions. 
 
CONSIDERATIONS  
 
     Planned Development: 
1. Screening and Landscaping 

Due to the applicant not proposing an expansion of the existing structure, upgrades to 
the site’s existing screening and landscaping is not required. However, at the 
recommendation of staff, landscaping is proposed at the Northeast corner of the site, as 



Page 2 of 4 
 

well as a six (6) foot landscape buffer along the North half of South Garland Avenue 
frontage and the East half of the McCree Road frontage. This was done in an effort to 
modernize the look of the site. 

2. Signage 

The applicant proposes signage on all facades of the building. 

The attached signage on the North facing elevation is allowed 51 square feet per the 
GDC. The applicant proposes 100 square feet of signage through the Planned 
Development. 

The attached signage on the East facing elevation is allowed 100 square feet per the 
GDC. The applicant proposes 200 square feet of signage through the Planned 
Development. 

The attached signage on the South facing elevation is allowed 51 square feet per the 
GDC. The applicant proposes 125 square feet of signage through the Planned 
Development. 

The attached signage on the West facing elevation is allowed 200 square feet per the 
GDC. The applicant proposes 175 square feet of signage and is in compliance with the 
GDC. 

3. Parking and Loading 

The site plan (Exhibit C) complies with the parking requirements for the Truck/Bus Sales 
& Leasing/Rental Use per the GDC. 

The applicant has also limited truck display along McCree Road to six (6) trucks and 
truck display along South Garland Avenue to five (5) trucks. There is no GDC limit to 
how many trucks can be displayed at a truck leasing business or along throughfares; 
however, the draft SUP Conditions limit it according to the site plan.  

4. Land Use: 

The applicant, at the recommendation of staff, proposes to prohibit High Risk Use, 
Heavy Machinery Sales, Rental, Storage & Repair, Animal Feed Processing and Storage, 
Impoundment Lot (commercial/private), Recycling Salvage Yard (no outside storage), 
Recycling Salvage Yard (unlimited outside storage), Contractor’s Office/Storage Yard 
(outside storage), and Sexually Oriented Business Uses on the subject property. 

In addition, the applicant proposes to add Retail Store as a permitted use. 

5. Specific Use Provision: 

The applicant proposes a time period of thirty (30) years for the Truck/Bus Sales Use. 
The SUP time period guide does not have a recommended amount of time for this land 
use. 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

The Future Land Use Map of the Envision Garland Plan recommends Business Centers for 
the subject property. Business Centers provide a cluster of business offices and/or low 



Page 3 of 4 
 
impact industry, including campus-type development, that cumulatively employ large 
numbers of people. Operations within this development type occur internal to buildings 
resulting in minimal negative impacts (sound, air, traffic, outdoor lighting, storage, etc.) 
and are compatible with adjacent development types in architecture, character, scale, and 
intensity. Business centers are generally located at intersections of major and/or secondary 
arterial streets or significant transit areas (bus/rail). Proximity and access to residential 
areas are encouraged to reduce travel times to employment. Site design addresses function 
and visual aesthetics providing appropriate buffering at gateway corridors, between 
adjacent developments, and for residential neighborhoods. 

Meanwhile, the proposal falls within the South Garland Avenue Catalyst Area that envisions 
redevelopment within this area. 

The proposed site design improvements elevate visual aesthetics to enhance an important 
gateway into the community.  

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIC PLAN: 

The Economic Development Strategic Plan highlights “infrastructure upgrades, role of the 
smaller building, and availability of space for expansion” for the future goals of the 
Industrial District. In addition, it recommends beautifying the Industrial District. The Plan 
notes the amount of auto-related uses in Garland as well. However, this project provides 
upgrades to the existing site, modernizes one of the smaller buildings within the district, 
and still allows space for future expansion within the site and area.  

COMPATIBILITY OF REQUEST WITH SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES 
The properties to the North, South, East, and West are zoned industrial and include a 
variety of heavy commercial and industrial uses. The property to the South is a U-Haul 
facility for self-storage and trailer/equipment leasing. In addition, the property to the West 
of the self-storage facility is a U-Haul truck repair facility. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approval of 1) a Change in Zoning from Industrial (IN) District to Planned Development 
(PD) District; 2) a Specific Use Provision for a Truck/Bus Sales & Leasing/Rental Use and 3) 
a Detail Plan for Truck/Bus Sales & Leasing/Rental Use. 
 
The applicant has worked with staff on a proposal that represents a physical improvement 
of the site over the existing condition, including the addition of landscaping, and the 
removal of the repair bay doors. In addition, the applicant has agreed to prohibiting certain 
uses on the site as noted in Consideration 4.  It should also be noted that, per the applicant, 
the number of parking spaces for U-Haul vehicles has been limited.   
 
However, given the subject property’s location as a gateway within a catalyst area, 
consideration should be given to a shorter SUP time period than the requested 30 years. A 
time period of ten (10) to fifteen (15) years is suggested.  
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
i. Location Map 
ii. Planned Development Conditions 
iii. Exhibits 
iv. Photos 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL DATE: June 4, 2024 



Page 4 of 4 
 
 
 
PREPARED BY:     REVIEWED BY: 
Matthew Wolverton Will Guerin, AICP 
Development Planner Director of Planning 
Planning & Development  
972-205-2454  
mwolverton@garlandtx.gov  

mailto:mwolverton@garlandtx.gov




EXHIBIT B 
 

 
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT CONDITIONS  

 
 

ZONING FILE Z 23-50 
 

2502, 2504, & 2550 McCree Road 
 

 
I. Statement of Purpose:  The purpose of this Planned 

Development District is to allow a Truck/Bus Sales & 
Leasing/Rental Use by Specific Use Provision and allow 
certain site and additional use conditions.  

 
II.  Statement of Effect:  This Planned Development (PD) 

shall not affect any regulation found in the Garland 
Development Code, Ordinance No. 6773 as amended prior 
to adoption of this ordinance, except as specifically 
provided herein. 

 
III. General Regulations:  All regulations of the 

Industrial (IN) District and Chapter 2 of the Garland 
Development Code, Ordinance 6773, are included by 
reference and shall apply, except as otherwise 
specified by this ordinance. 

 
IV. Development Plans: 
 

A. Detail Plan:  Development is to be in general 
conformance with the approved Detail Plan set forth 
in Exhibit C, Exhibit D and Exhibit E. In the event 
of conflict between the conditions and Detail Plan, 
the conditions listed below are to apply. 

 
V. Specific Conditions: 

 
A. Uses: In addition to uses permitted in the 

Industrial (IN) District, with the exception of 
those listed below, Retail Store shall be permitted 
by right. 
 
 
The following uses shall be prohibited: 
 
High Risk Use 
Heavy Machinery Sales, Rental, Storage & Repair 
Animal Feed Processing and Storage 
Impoundment Lot (commercial/private) 
Recycling Salvage Yard (no outside storage) 
Recycling Salvage Yard (unlimited outside storage) 
Contractor’s Office/Storge Yard (outside storage) 



PD/SUP Requirements 
Zoning File 23-50 
Page 2   

EXHIBIT B 

Sexually Oriented Business 
 
 
B. Site Layout and Parking: The development shall be in 

conformance with the site layout in Exhibit C.  
 

C. Landscaping: Landscaping shall be in conformance 
with the proposed landscaping buffer and layout in 
Exhibit C.  

 
D. Building Elevations: Building elevations shall be in 

general conformance with Exhibit D.  
 
E. Signage: Four (4) attached signs will be allowed as 

per Exhibit E. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



PD/SUP Requirements 
Zoning File 23-50 
Page 2   

EXHIBIT B 

 
 
 

SPECIFIC USE PROVISION CONDITIONS 
 
 

ZONING FILE Z 23-50 
 

2502, 2504, & 2550 McCree Road 
 

I. Statement of Purpose:  The purpose of this Specific 
Use Provision is to allow a Truck/Bus Sales & 
Leasing/Rental Use. 
 

II.  Statement of Effect:  This Specific Use Provision 
shall not affect any regulation found in the Garland 
Development Code, Ordinance No. 6773 as amended prior 
to adoption of this ordinance, except as specifically 
provided herein. 
 

VI. General Regulations:  All regulations of the 
Industrial (IN) District and Chapter 2 of the Garland 
Development Code, Ordinance 6773, are included by 
reference and shall apply, except as otherwise 
specified by this ordinance. 

 
VII. Specific Use Provision: 
 

A. SUP Time Period: The Specific Use Provision for the 
Truck/Bus Sales & Leasing/Rental Use shall be in 
effect for a period of thirty (30) years. 
 

B. Truck Display/Parking: Truck display is limited 
along McCree Road to six (6) truck spaces, and truck 
display along South Garland Avenue is limited to 
five (5) truck spaces, as shown in Exhibit C. 

 













   
 

 

Z 23-50 
 
 

  

View of the subject site from South Garland 
Avenue 

East of the subject property 

 
 
 

 

North of the subject property South of subject property 
 






	Agenda
	AI_9488_Plan Commission Minutes for April 22, 2024
	       ATT_April 22, 2024 Plan Commission Minutes 
	MINUTES

	AI_9489_P 24-11 Urbana Centerville Addition - Final Plat
	       ATT_P 24-11 Urbana Centerville Addition Final Plat Report and Attachments 
	AI_9490_P 24-12 Urban Village at Rosehill - Final Plat
	       ATT_P 24-12 Urban Village at Rosehill Final Plat Report and Attachments
	AI_9499_P 24-14 Faulkner Point No. 7 First Replat - Final Plat
	       ATT_P 24-14 Faulkner Point No. 7 First Replat Final Plat Report and Attachments 
	AI_9491_Z 23-50 U-Haul Company of East Dallas (District 5)
	       ATT_Z 23-50 U-Haul Company of East Dallas Report and Attachments
	       ATT_Z 23-50 U-Haul Company of East Dallas Responses

